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STATE OF MONTANA

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ADDENDUM

RFP NO. 14-2888P
TO BE OPENED: July 14, 2014
TITLE: Customer Flow Management System
ADDENDUM NO. 1
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 1.
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Penny Moon
Senior Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP #14-2888P 

	1. 
	10
	2.4.6
	Q.    Please clarify your criterion for inviting a vendor for demo. How does a vendor qualify for an invitation?
A.    As stated in Section 4.2.5 (please note underlined correction): Offerors must be prepared to have the key personnel assigned to this project complete a product demonstration in Helena, Montana. The State reserves the right to: (1) have demonstrations from only the two highest scoring offerors; (2) have demonstrations from all offerors within 10% of the highest scoring offeror; or (3) have no demonstrations, at the State's discretion.

	2. 
	13
	3.1
	Q.    Can you provide average customer traffic counts by location (daily/monthly/annually)?
A.     See revised Appendix E attached.

	3. 
	13
	3.1
	Q.    Describe the current appointment functionality utilized by the State.  Is it integrated with DL data base?
A.    MVD currently has appointment functionality in 15 locations across the state and it is not integrated with the DL database.  

	4. 
	13
	3.1
	Q.    Does the MVD foresee / intend to offer appointments for its services at all 50 locations? Does MVD intend to implement a Customer Flow System at all 50 locations? Will MVD consider CFM solutions that integrate with their existing appointment system?
A.    The number of locations that will implement these services is dependent upon the solution and costs.  However, MVD would like the option to implement a customer flow management solution in all locations.  We do not want integration with our existing appointment system.  

	5. 
	13
	3.1
	Q.     Will all 50 DLB's be using the customer queuing and online appointment scheduling system?
A.     See response to question #4.

	6. 
	13
	3.1
	Q.     Will MVD please specify the name of each location that will be using a customer queuing and online appointment system?
A.     See response to question #4.

	7. 
	13
	3.1
	Q.     How many workstations/windows are at each of these branch locations?
A.     See revised Appendix E attached.

	8. 
	13
	3.1
	Q.     What is the number of workstations/counters per site?
A.      See revised Appendix E attached.

	9. 
	13
	3.1
	Q.     How many computer workstations and/or customer service counters are typically at a permanent location? Is it possible to add a column with this info on Appendix E?
A.     See revised Appendix E attached.

	10. 
	13
	3.1
	Q.     Do you currently have an app? Is it supported by android/apple or both?
A.     MVD does currently offer a scheduling app and is not supported by android or apple.  We are moving to an HTML5 and CSS3 architecture.   

	11. 
	13
	3.1
	Q.     What percentage of current business is walk-in vs. pre-scheduled appointments?
A.     20% of our customers are walk-ins. 

	12. 
	14
	3.2
	Q.    How long do you want the data archived in your system?
A.    For statistical reporting purposes, three years; for the ability to view schedules, six months. 

	13. 
	14
	3.2
	Q.    Is there a need for workstation signage? If so, do you require that to be an LED sign showing the ticket number called to that workstation or a static (non-electronic) sign just showing the workstation number?
A.     It is anticipated MVD would need one per office with the exception of two locations that would require two, Billings and Missoula.  If the solution runs on a standard monitor, MVD may purchase.   

	14. 
	14
	3.2
	Q.    Would MVD like LED workstation displays at each window?  When a customer's number is called the workstation displays will display the number above the window.
A.     See response to question #13.  

	15. 
	14
	3.2
	Q.     Will MVD be using digital signage software and TV monitors to display customer queuing numbers, corresponding workstations, PPT presentations, PSAs, etc.?
A      No.

	16. 
	14
	3.2
	Q.     Please reference the question above - will MVD provide all of the necessary TV monitors or does the vendor need to quote these items in the price proposal?
A.     See response to #13.   

	17. 
	14
	3.2
	Q.     Please reference the question above - how many TV monitors are needed at each location?
A.     See response to #13.

	18. 
	14
	3.2
	Q.    A player PC is usually needed to run locally at each location to support the queuing system and digital signage - will MVD provide the necessary PCs or does the vendor need to quote these items in the price proposal?  Further, will MVD provide the central server needed for data collection from all branches?
A.     MVD would provide any needed PCs and the central server, if applicable.  The solution needs to run on the state standards for equipment.   

	19. 
	14
	3.2
	Q.     Do you currently measure customer wait times or any other performance metrics?
A.      We do not currently measure customer wait times or any other performance metrics around customer flow management. 

	20. 
	14
	3.2
	Q.     3.2 Provide greater flexibility for managing MVD employees’ availability for times that they cannot service customer during the work day - Please clarify this request.
A.     Breaks, lunches, personal appointments, etc.  

	21. 
	14
	3.2
	Q.    What type of alerts would you like included to notify customers that it is their turn at the service counter once at a location? Audible voice? Audible Chime?
A.     See response to question #13.  We do not wish to have audible voice or chime.

	22. 
	14
	3.3.1
	Q.     How many initial training sessions will be required and at what locations?
A.     We would like one train the trainer session on site in Helena and other trainings would be via vendor provided Computer Based Trainings (CBT).

	23. 
	14
	3.3.1
	Q.     How many total concurrent users (State of Montana employees) would need to access the system simultaneously?  This would include employees at each workstation and any administrative users viewing reports, status at a given venue, etc.?
A.     Provided that the solution will be deployed to all locations, 100 users.  

	24. 
	14
	3.3.1
	Q.     Will all training be at a central location? If not how many physical locations will require onsite training?
A.     See response to question #22.   

	25. 
	19
	3.7
	Q.     Please specify the network bandwidth expectation for the queuing solution at each location.
A.     All locations are at 1.5 M and above.  

	26. 
	19
	3.7
	Q.     If queuing system requirements exceeds location bandwidth capacity - will MVD provide the necessary infrastructure?
A.     Yes, pending the cost is feasible and there could be delay in deployment for that location.   

	27. 
	19
	3.7
	Q.     Do all locations have internet access?
A.      Yes.

	28. 
	19
	3.7
	Q.     Are all locations on the same network?  If not how many different networks are deployed amongst the 50 locations?
A.     Yes.  

	29. 
	22
	4.2.6
	Q.     Will the State consider a Proof of Concept trial whereby the software and hardware is provided at no cost by the vendor, with the State paying for basic professional services, travel expenses for implementation and training?  Would a proposal suggesting this be disqualified?
A.     Yes, if your proposal includes professional service costs for the Proof of Concept, include them in your cost proposal with a not to exceed amount.  No.   

	30. 
	22
	Section 4

4.2.6

Offeror Qualifications
	Q.     Proof of Concept – does the State have an existing public web site that they wish to integrate scheduling functions into or is the successful vendor required to develop a public site for the State? If integrating into an existing site, what is the expectation in terms of integration?
A.      MVD has an existing public web site that we would provide a link to the successful solution.  

	31. 
	22
	Section 4

4.2.6

Offeror Qualifications
	Q.     Can the State provide some examples of the types of reports they wish to access?
A.      Some examples are: number of customers per location/day/week/month; number of no-shows per location/day/week/month; employee productivity (if applicable); wait times by location (if applicable); and service/operating level agreement reports.   

	32. 
	23
	5.2
	Q.     Concerning pricing - is MVD seeking a leasing type cost proposal based on number of SMS messages sent out customers and MVD FTEs that can result invoices that can fluctuate on a monthly or annual basis or is MVD seeking a more up-front cost for hardware & software?
A.     MVD is seeking an up-front cost for hardware and software.  

	33. 
	32
	Appendix B

18.4
	Q.     Would MVD waive the 25% Contract Performance Security requirement?  A $500,000 bond will limit the number of vendors that respond to this opportunity.
A.    The State offers the following compromise: Contract Performance Bond will be in place until the warranty period has ended and then the contractor shall place the software Source Code in an escrow account and escrow any updates, improvements, enhancements or modifications to the Source Code, on terms acceptable to the MVD.  Upon acceptance of the escrow arrangements, the State will release the Contract Performance Bond. 

	34. 
	40
	Appendix C
	Q.     We understand the travel / travel-permanent locations are manned by staff from permanent stations. Can you confirm how many concurrent software user licenses are required, statewide?
A.     See response to question #23.

	35. 
	43
	Appendix D
F1
	Q.     How many appointments are made on an annual basis for MVD operations?
A.     For the 15 locations that currently have appointment scheduling, on average 20,000 appointments are made monthly.

	36. 
	43
	Appendix D

F1
	Q.     How many service types (queues) will MVD offer at each branch?  Will the same service types (queues) be offered by appointments as well?  If not, please clarify.
A.     MVD offers seven service types that are available at all locations.  MVD would like to be able to offer a customer flow management solution for each.   

	37. 
	43
	Appendix D

F3
	Q.     In reference to section F3: The solution must capture and display (viewable by customers and MVD employees) real-time customer wait times at all MVD locations. The offeror must describe how their solution meets this requirement.   How does your organization want this information displayed? Is it via Digital Signage on TV’s or via Led Displays?  Do you require the ability to create media playlists and schedule these to be displayed on dedicated areas on media screens via Digital Signage?  If it is through Digital Signage on a TV, will your organization provide the TV’s? If not how many TV’s will be needed per site? Is there a current Digital Signage provider?
A.    In Appendix D, F 30 - MVD does not currently have digital signage at our locations, we ask that the offeror describe what signage options the solution supports.  If monitors or TVs are required, MVD may purchase these.   

	38. 
	45
	Appendix D

F16
	Q.     How would MVD like the self-service kiosk to be mounted - floor, wall, or desktop?
A.    They may not be needed; it depends upon the solution that is selected.  All of the above could be used, it will depend upon office space and layout.   

	39. 
	45
	Appendix D

F16
	Q.     How many kiosks are needed at each location?
A.    They may not be needed; if they are required, all sites, including travel, would need one; Billings and Missoula would require two.  We ask that the offerors make recommendations to MVD on what solution would benefit us.     

	40. 
	45
	Appendix D

F16
	Q.     Is there a minimum touchscreen size that is required?  (17" is standard)
A.     We may not require a touchscreen, if they are required 10” would be the smallest.       

	41. 
	47
	Appendix D

F34
	Q.     Will you please more clarification?  Is the customer's name to displayed in the customer lobby on the TV monitor?  If so, does the customer scan their ID at the kiosk or input their name to the touchscreen?  Please clarify.
A.     We are asking for the customer’s name or other identifying information to potentially be displayed, not necessarily both.      

	42. 
	49
	T5 Technical Requirements
	Q.     What PII is stored for logins? Does the State mean public applicants coming in through a site or internal logins? How much data would be stored? Are applicants already stored elsewhere, or does the proposed vendor need to create records?
A.     Applicant data is not stored elsewhere; the contractor would need to store the data for the customer reservation, if PII is part of the data then the contractor would be required to protect it.  

	43. 
	52
	T19 Technical Requirements
	Q.     We are concerned with a web-based solution meeting expectations if there are serious connectivity problems. Are the connectivity issues at the offices themselves or only remotely?
A.     All offices have at least 1.5 M bandwidth.  There are not serious connectivity problems with the network.  

	44. 
	60
	Appendix E
	Q.     Travel Teams - is MVD seeking a mobile queuing solution that tracks customer wait/service times and employee productivities?
A.    Yes, that solution would be considered.  We ask that the offerors make recommendations to MVD on what solution would benefit us.     

	45. 
	60
	Appendix E
	Q.     Travel Teams - should the mobile queuing solution produce customer tickets and audibly queue the customer to the MVD employee?
A.    They may not be needed; it depends upon the solution that is selected.  MVD does not want an audible solution.  

	46. 
	60
	Appendix E
	Q.     Travel Teams - how many mobile queuing solution units are needed?
A.    They may not be needed; it depends upon the solution that is selected. See specifics in revised Appendix E attached.


APPENDIX E:  MVD DRIVER SERVICES STATIONS STAFFING
Driver licensing operations and support services are currently provided at fifty permanent and part-time driver services stations located throughout Montana. The days and hours of operation and the services available at the driver services stations vary by location. The MVD currently uses three staffing models to provide customer service at the driver services stations:

· “Permanent” driver services stations – these stations are located in Montana’s larger cities (e.g., Billings, Missoula, Great Falls), provide full driver licensing services, are generally open Monday through Friday, and are staffed fulltime by MVD employees.

· “Travel” stations – these stations are typically located in Montana’s smaller towns (e.g., Townsend, Chinook, Superior). Part-time stations are staffed by MVD employees who travel from the full-service offices with mobile equipment (e.g., image capture workstation, laptops, printer) that is set up on site. These stations may provide only limited services and are generally open from one to four days per month.

· “Travel – Permanent” stations – these stations are also staffed by MVD employees who travel from the full-service offices. However, driver license processing equipment is permanently stored at these stations. These sites may provide only limited services and are generally open from one to four days per month.

Both full-service and part-time driver services stations are equipped with at least one direct online network connection to the state computer system and the current driver license system. Field office and headquarters employee workstations consist of state-owned PC’s running Microsoft Windows.
	Driver Services Station
*mobile stations if required 
	Station Type
	FT/PT?
	Days Per Month
	Days/Hours
	# Staff
	# Work stations
	Average Customer contacts (mo/yr) 2013

	Headquarters
	Permanent
	FT
	22
	Monday – Friday : 8-5
	Five days a week: 8
	8
	N/A

	Western Region
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Kalispell
	Permanent
	FT
	22
	Monday – Friday : 8-5
	Monday – Thursday : 4

Friday: 5

Regional Manager: 1

CDL/VIN: 1
	6
	2,085/25,013

	     Eureka *
	Travel
	PT
	4
	Thursdays: 10 – 3 
	1 (covered by Kalispell)
	1
	58/691

	Libby
	Permanent
	PT
	22
	Wednesday – Thursday: 8-5

Friday: 8–12:00
	Two days a week: 2

One half day a week: 1
	2
	261/3129

	Polson
	Permanent
	FT
	22
	Monday – Friday : 8-5
	Three days a week: 1

Two days a week: 2
	2
	522/6265

	Missoula
	Permanent
	FT
	22
	Monday – Friday : 8-5
	Five days a week: 5

Relief examiner: 1

CDL/VIN: 2
	8
	2,421/29,053

	     Superior *
	Travel
	PT
	2
	2nd and 4th Thursdays: 9:30 – 3:30 
	1 (covered by Missoula)
	1
	32/378

	Stevensville
	Permanent
	FT
	22
	Monday – Friday : 8-5
	Five days a week: 2
	2
	840/10,079

	Thompson Falls
	Permanent
	PT
	13
	Tuesday – Wednesday : 8-5

Thursday: 8 – 12 
	Three days a week: 1
	1
	205/2,459

	Northern Region
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Butte
	Permanent
	FT
	22
	Monday – Friday: 8-5
	Five days a week: 3
	3
	900/10,796

	     Anaconda *
	Travel – Permanent
	PT
	4
	Fridays: 8:30 – 2:30
	1 (covered by Butte)
	1
	104/1,243

	     Deer Lodge *
	Travel – Permanent
	PT
	7
	Wednesdays and 1st, 2nd, and 4th Thursdays: 9 – 3:45
	1 (covered by Butte)
	1
	94/1,131

	     Phillipsburg * 
	Travel
	PT
	1
	3rd Thursday: 9:30 – 3:30 
	1 (covered by Butte)
	1
	20/231

	Cut Bank
	Permanent
	PT
	8
	Monday & Friday: 8:30 – 4:30 
	Two days a week: 1
	1
	156/1,876

	     Browning *
	Permanent
	PT
	4
	Thursdays: 9:15 – 3:45
	1 (covered by Cut Bank)
	1
	41/491

	     Conrad *
	Travel – Permanent
	PT
	4
	Wednesdays: 8:45 – 4:15
	1 (covered by Cut Bank)
	1
	89/1,068

	     Shelby *
	Travel – Permanent
	PT
	4
	Tuesdays: 8:45 – 4:15
	1 (covered by Cut Bank)
	1
	48/572

	Dillon
	Permanent
	PT
	12
	Monday and Tuesday: 8 – 5 

Wednesday: 8 – 12 
	One day a week: 2

One-and-a-half days a week: 1
	2
	195/2,342

	Great Falls
	Permanent
	FT
	22
	Monday – Friday : 8-5
	Five days a week: 4

Regional Manager: 1

CDL/VIN: 1.5
	5
	1,661/19,936

	     Choteau *
	Travel
	PT
	4
	Tuesdays: 9:30 – 3:30 
	1 (covered by Great Falls)
	1
	61/726

	     Fort Benton 
	Travel
	PT
	1
	3rd Thursday: 9:30 – 3:30 
	1 (covered by Great Falls)
	1
	19/226

	Havre
	Permanent
	FT
	18
	Monday, Tuesday, Thursday, and Friday: 8 – 5
	Four days a week: 1.5
	2
	472/5,657

	     Chester *
	Travel
	PT
	1
	2nd Wednesday: 9:30 – 3:30
	1 (covered by Havre)
	1
	18/215

	     Chinook *
	Travel
	PT
	1
	3rd  Wednesday: 9 – 4
	1 (covered by Havre)
	1
	16/187

	     Malta *
	Travel
	PT
	2
	1st and 4th Wednesdays: 10:15 – 1:45
	1 (covered by Havre)
	1
	32/380

	Helena
	Permanent
	FT
	22
	Monday – Friday : 8-5
	Five days a week: 2.5

Relief examiner: 1
	4
	1,350/16,195

	     Townsend * 
	Travel
	PT
	1
	1st Thursday: 9:30 – 3:30
	1 (covered by Helena)
	1
	23/271

	Central Region
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Billings
	Permanent
	FT
	22
	Monday – Friday : 8-5
	Five days a week: 7

Regional Manager: 1

CDL/VIN: 2

Relief examiner: 1
	8
	3,666/43,997

	     Columbus *
	Travel – Permanent
	PT
	4
	Thursdays: 9:30 – 3:30  
	1 (covered by Billings)
	1
	86/1,032

	     Hardin * 
	Travel
	PT
	1
	2nd Tuesday: 9:30 – 3:30
	1 (covered by Billings)
	1
	21/255

	     Red Lodge *
	Travel – Permanent
	PT
	4
	Wednesdays: 10 – 3 
	1 (covered by Billings)
	1
	73/874

	Bozeman
	Permanent
	FT
	22
	Monday – Friday : 8-5
	Five days a week: 4
	6
	2,090/25,082

	Lewistown
	Permanent
	FT
	17
	Monday, Tuesday, Thursday, and Friday: 8 – 5 
	Four days a week: 1
	1
	272/3,259

	     Harlowton *
	Travel
	PT
	1
	1st Wednesday: 10 – 3 
	1 (covered by Lewistown)
	1
	20/234

	     Roundup *
	Travel – Permanent
	PT
	3
	2nd, 3rd, 4th Wednesdays: 10 – 3 
	1 (covered by Lewistown)
	1
	57/687

	Livingston
	Permanent
	FT
	17
	Monday, Tuesday, and Thursday:     8 – 5

Friday: 8-12:30 
	Three and one-half-days a week: 1
	1
	330/3,960

	     Big Timber *
	Travel
	PT
	3
	2nd, 3rd, 4th Wednesdays: 9:30 – 3
	1 (covered by Livingston)
	1
	42/504

	     White Sulphur Springs
	Travel
	PT
	1
	1st Wednesday: 10 – 3 
	1 (covered by Livingston)
	1
	17/198

	Eastern Region
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Glasgow
	Permanent
	FT
	12
	Monday, Tuesday, and Friday: 8 – 5 
	Three days a week: 2
	2
	162/1,949

	     Scobey *
	Travel
	PT
	1
	4th  Tuesday: 10:30 – 2:30 
	1 (covered by Glasgow)
	1
	18/220

	     Wolf Point
	Travel
	PT
	8
	Wednesday and Thursday: 9:30 – 3:30
	1 (covered by Glasgow)
	1
	170/2,043

	Glendive
	Permanent
	FT
	22
	Monday – Friday : 8-5
	Five days a week: 3

Regional Manager: 1
	2
	266/3,193

	     Circle * 
	Travel
	PT
	1
	2nd Thursday: 9:30 – 3:30 
	1 (covered by Glendive)
	1
	20/238

	Miles City
	Permanent
	FT
	22
	Monday – Friday : 8-5
	Five days a week: 2


	2
	289/3,473

	     Baker *
	Travel
	PT
	2
	2nd and 3rd Tuesdays: 9 – 3:30 
	1 (covered by Miles City)
	1
	32/389

	     Broadus 
	Travel
	PT
	2
	1st and 4th Tuesdays: 10 – 3 
	1 (covered by Miles City)
	1
	25/298

	     Colstrip *
	Travel – Permanent
	PT
	4
	Thursdays: 10 – 3 
	1 (covered by Miles City)
	1
	58/698

	     Forsyth *
	Travel
	PT
	2
	1st and 3rd Wednesdays: 9:30 – 3:30
	1 (covered by Miles City)
	1
	32/388

	Sidney
	Permanent
	FT
	22
	Monday – Friday: 8 – 5 
	Five days a week: 2
	2
	302/3,622

	     Plentywood *
	Travel
	PT
	4
	Tuesdays: 10 – 3 
	1 (covered by Sidney)
	1
	72/862
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